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Biography

Mr. Khong Tran was born, one of nine children, on September 23, 1955, in
Kien Giang Province, South Vietnam. He began fishing and shrimping with his father
at the age of ten. His mother sold their catch at the local markets. In 1978 Mr. Tran
escaped Vietnam by boat with friends to avoid being drafted to fight in Cambodia. He
escaped with thirty to forty people toward Thailand and three months later made it to
Hawaii, where he lived for one year before moving to New Orleans, Louisiana, in
1980. Mr. Tran first worked as a cook in a restaurant, then began fishing and saved
enough money to buy his first grocery store. He owned grocery stores in New Orleans
for seventeen years until Hurricane Katrina in 2005. After his last store was
destroyed, he began shrimping. At the time of the interview, Mr. Tran had been
shrimping for four years. He has a wife and daughter who live in Vietnam.
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AN ORAL HISTORY
with

KHONG TRAN

This is an interview for The University of Southern Mississippi Center for Oral
History and Cultural Heritage. The interview is with Khong Tran and is taking place on
August 22, 2011. The interviewer is Linda VanZandt. English/Vietnamese
interpretation is provided by Khanh Nguyen.

Interviewer’s Note: Interviewee, Mr. Tran, speaks Vietnamese with some English
throughout the interview. Ms. Nguyen translates/interprets Mr. Tran’s Vietnamese
responses into English to Ms. VanZandt. Vietnamese transcriber’s English translation
of Vietnamese language passages are italicized and appear in parentheses below the
passage. Ms. VanZandt’s responses and follow-up questions were in response only to
Ms. Nguyen’s interpretation during the interview. There is additional information
revealed here, post-interview, in the italicized transcribed passages.

VanZandt: OK. Today is August 22, 2011, and this is Linda VanZandt. And I’m
with The University of Southern Mississippi’s Center for Oral History. 1’m here in the
offices of Mary Queen of Vietnam Community Development Corporation in New
Orleans East. And I’m here today with Mr. Tran, who is a resident here, and a
wonderful interpreter, Khai Nguyen’s sister. If you could say your name.

Nguyen: Khanh Nguyen.

VanZandt: Khanh Nguyen. How do you spell your name?

Nguyen: K-H-A-N-H.

VanZandt: OK. Thank you. And Mr. Tran, if you could say and spell your name.
Tran: Uh, t6i tén Khéng Tran. Khong Tran.

(My name is Khong Tran.)

Nguyen: Khéng Tran.

Tran: Um-hm.

Nguyen: His name is Khong Tran. So K-H-O-N-G, T-R-A-N.

VanZandt: Thank you. And Mr. Tran, what is your occupation?

Nguyen: Chu 1am nghé gi?
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(What is your occupation?)

Tran: Cha 1am nghé bién.

(Fishing.)

Nguyen: Uh, fishing.

VanZandt: Fishing? OK. What kind of fishing? What do you fish for?
Tran: Toi di lam cao tom.

(Shrimping.)

Nguyen: Shrimping.

VanZandt: Shrimping?

Tran: Yes, shrimping.

VanZandt: OK. How long have you been a shrimper?

Tran: Four years. (speaking Vietnamese)

Nguyen: Four years.

VanZandt: Four years? What did you do before you were shrimping?
Tran: Lam tiém; groceries.

(Grocery store.)

Nguyen: He worked in grocery stores.

VanZandt: Ah, OK. Interesting. Here in New Orleans? Grocery stores?
Tran: Yes.

VanZandt: OK. What did you do in the grocery stores?

Tran: Owner. (chuckle)

Nguyen: Khi ma cha lam groceries cha lam gi?

(What did you do in the grocery store?)

Tran: Lam cha. (chuckle)

(Owner.)

Nguyen: Owner. (chuckle) Owner of a grocery store.
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VanZandt: Oh! OK. You owned a grocery store.
Tran: Yeah.

VanZandt: And how did you get into shrimping? What made you leave the grocery
store?

Tran: Sau con bao Katrina, bo tiém khong lam nira, di lam tom.
(After Katrina, [I] couldn’t reopen [my] stores and decided to go into shrimping.)

Nguyen: After [Hurricane] Katrina, he couldn’t reopen his stores, and he decided to
go into shrimping.

VanZandt: OK. So maybe we’ll start a little bit about your life in Vietnam, and
when we get to Katrina, you can tell us a little bit about that. It sounds like that’s
important. How long did you own the grocery store?

Tran: Khoang 17 nam.

(About 17 years.)

Nguyen: Seventeen years.

VanZandt: Seventeen years. What was the name of it?

Tran: Nhiéu chd Iim. C6é nhiéu tiém Iam. C6 mot tiém 1a Abundant Food Store.
Abundant—

(I owned several, but one of them called Abundant Food Store.)

Nguyen: Abundant. He said he owned several, but one of them is called—(speaking
Vietnamese)—

Tran: Abundant Food Store.
Nguyen: Abandoned.
VanZandt: Abandoned?
Nguyen: Abundant, Abundant.
VanZandt: Abundant!

Tran: Yeah, Abundant.
VanZandt: Good name.
Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: So do you own any of the stores now?
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Tran: No, no more.
Nguyen: No more.

VanZandt: OK, no more. OK, just shrimping. Well, if we can go back to the
beginning of your life, Mr. Tran. And can you tell me where you were born, and the
year?

Khong: Sanh ¢ Viét Nam.

(Born in Vietnam.)

Nguyen: O chd nao?

(Where?)

Tran: O Kién Giang. Kién Giang.

(In Kien Giang.)

Nguyen: Kién Giang.

VanZandt: He was showing me on the map. | brought a map.
Tran: Uh-huh.

Nguyen: He was born in the, what do you call, Kién Giang.
Tran: On the map, Kién Giang.

VanZandt: And that’s K-I-E-N, G-1-A-N-G.

Nguyen: Nam nao?

(When?)

Tran: Théang, 9, 23, 52.

(September 23, [19]55.)

Nguyen: He was born September 23, 1955.

VanZandt: Fifty-five.

Tran: Yes.

VanZandt: Ah, OK. So you have a birthday coming up. (chuckle)
Tran: Yeah, yeah. (chuckle)

VanZandt: OK. And where in Vietnam is Kién Giang?
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Nguyen: Mién Bic phai khong?

(Is it in the North?)

Tran: No, no. N6 & mién Nam. It’s South Vietnam.
(It is in the South of Vietnam.)

Nguyen: It’s around the Delta area? Mekong—
VanZandt: Mekong Delta, yeah. OK. Along the river?
Tran: Yeah, yeah.

Nguyen: Doc ven song?

(Along the river?)

Tran: Gan bién.

(Near the ocean.)

Nguyen: Near the ocean.

VanZandt: Near the ocean.

Nguyen: Near the coast.

VanZandt: A fishing town?

Tran: Yeah.

VanZandt: OK, OK. Did your father shrimp or fish—
Tran: Fish.

VanZandt: —in that town? He did.

Tran: Lam tau bién ludn.

(The shrimping also.)

Nguyen: He also, his career was also fishing.

VanZandt: OK, OK. So you were born in 1955 in that town? Did you live there all
your life in Vietnam?

Tran: Yeah, yeah. (chuckle)

VanZandt: OK. And your parents, too?
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Tran: Yeah.

VanZandt: OK. Can you tell me anything you’d like to share about growing up near
the water with your father, your parents, there in the fishing village. What was that
like?

Tran: Tai hoi nhé minh 1am nghé bién, minh thich minh 1am.
(1 did fishing when | was young. 1 liked it.)

Nguyen: Chu cé thé chia sé 1a minh da 16n 1én nhu thé ndo? Cai lang d6 nhu thé
nao?

(Can you share how you grew up? What was that village like?)
Tran: Vui vé hét, thich & 6 nhidu hon. Nén khong cé di dau hét.
(Very happy. 1 like being there so I didn’t go anywhere.)

Nguyen: Yeah. He said he liked living in that fishing village so much that he didn’t
want to go anywhere else.

VanZandt: Mm.

Nguyen: His childhood was really joyful and happy, and he was just content to stay
in place. And he said that he really liked shrimping and fishing. That’s why he went
back to it. That’s what he knew growing up.

Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: Right! And you loved that, so it’s nice to be doing that again, I’m sure,
carrying on your father’s tradition.

Tran: Um-hm.

VanZandt: How old were you when you first started fishing with your father?
Tran: Ten.

VanZandt: Ten years old?

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: Very young. OK. Is that what most boys did in your village, at your
age?

Nguyen: O cai lang do6, Itra tudi do.. thi ai ciing di 1am vay &.?

(In that village, at that age, everyone did the same thing?)

This transcript is for reference and research purposes only. It is protected by copyright. Permission to publish must be requested from the Center
for Oral History and Cultural Heritage. Contact information can be found at http://www.usm.edu/oral-history.


http://www.usm.edu/oral-history

Tran: Ai ciing vay ca.

(Everyone did.)

Nguyen: In that village, you start working when you’re that young, yes.
VanZandt: OK. And did you have brothers and sisters?
Tran: Yes.

VanZandt: How many were in your family, children?
Tran: | have four brother and four sister.

VanZandt: Oh, my!

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: Oh, my! Nine children.

Tran: Yeah, nine children.

VanZandt: OK. Almost even. And where were you, Mr. Tran, in the pecking order
of nine?

Nguyen: Ch Ia con tha may?

(What is your pecking order in your family?)
Tran: Thu nhat.

(The first.)

Nguyen: He’s the first born.

VanZandt: Oldest? Oldest son?

Tran: Yeah. (laughs)

VanZandt: Oh, OK. Very important. OK. Well, just tell me a little bit about—what
was your house like, where you lived? And anything about daily life: What your
mother did, what kind of games you played with your brothers and sisters? School
memories, anything like that that you remember.

Tran: (speaking Vietnamese) (chuckle)
Nguyen: Hoi nho chu di hoc thé nao? Choi thé nao véi ban, véi cac anh em?
(How was your childhood? How did you play with your brothers and sisters?)

Tran: Dihoc, cudi tuan thi di ¢4 banh. O Viét Nam thi chi c6 mon da banh.
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(During the day, on weekdays, | went to school, came home and went fishing to work.
But on the weekend I liked to play soccer.)

Nguyen: He said, um, during the day, during the weekday, he goes to school, comes
home, and he goes fishing, to work. But then on the weekends he likes to play soccer.

VanZandt: Soccer fan? OK.

Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: And all the boys in your town, did you play together?

Tran: Yeah, yeah.

VanZandt: OK, fun. What was school like? Did you like school?
Tran: | like school. (chuckles)

VanZandt: You did?

Tran: Nhung ma khong c6 thoi gio hoc. Hoc téi 16p 9 16p 10 1a nghi roi.
(I didn’t have time to study. | just studied nine and ten grade.)

Nguyen: He liked school, but he didn’t have the opportunity and the time to continue
so he only went up to ninth or tenth grade, and then he had to stop and go to work to
help all his family.

VanZandt: Sure, OK. What was your favorite subject in school?
Nguyen: Khi hoc thi mén nao ma chu thich nhat?

(What were your favorite subject at school?)

Tran: Hbi d6 thich toan nhiéu hon.

(I liked maths more.)

Nguyen: He likes math the most.

VanZandt: Oooh, OK.

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: Good for being a business owner.

Tran: (laughs)
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VanZandt: OK, and played soccer. When you started working with your father,
shrimping and fishing, can you tell me about what the fishing life was like in Vietnam;
very different from here—

Tran: Yeah.

VanZandt: —and now. What your boat was like, and the method, how he went
about fishing and what all he caught. Just anything about that that might be interesting
for people to know.

Nguyen: Lam bién ¢ Viét Nam thé nao, cai tau nhu thé no, sinh hoat 1am sao?
(Can you tell me about what the fishing life was like, in Vietnam?)

Tran: Khéc la cai tau bang gd, cuc kho hon bén day, khong c6 may lanh, ngu & trén
mui, danh ca bang ludi.

(Wooden boats, no air-conditioning, old nets.)

Nguyen: Going to the boats, over in Vietnam, they have wooden boats, no air-
conditioning.

Tran: (laughs)

Nguyen: They sleep out under the stars—
VanZandt: Ohh—

Nguyen: They cast, you know, they cast old nets.
VanZandt: Right, right.

Nguyen: Con tau bén nay thi sao?

(What about the boat here?)

Tran: Bén nay thi tau cua nguoi ta, minh chi di chay tau cong thoi, nhung thay thoai
mai hon nhi€u, tai n6 co6 day du do, may lanh.

(Over here, 1 don’t own my own boat. | work for someone else, and it’s more
comfortable because the boats are bigger, they are more convenient and comfortable.)

Nguyen: Over here, he doesn’t own his own boat. He just works for someone else,
and it’s more comfortable because the boats, they’re bigger, they’re air-conditioned,
they’re more convenient—

Tran: Um-hm.

Nguyen: And they’re more comfortable.
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VanZandt: Comfortable, OK. Not very comfortable back when you were little.
Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: But it was fun anyway, I’ll bet. 1’ve heard stores of lanterns at night to
attract the fish. Did you fish at night, or daytime? Tell me a little about how you went
about catching the fish.

Tran: Dém ngay gi minh ciing 1lam, khéng c6 nghi.
(No matter what time of the day.)

Nguyen: He said that they go fish anytime there’s a fish that bites, they fished. It
doesn’t matter what time of day it is. (chuckles)

Tran: Uh-huh.

VanZandt: So, you would go out after school in the afternoon? How long would you
stay out?

Tran: Night. Tai vi hoi xua ¢ Viét Nam, ddu c6 hoc gidng nhu bén day la tir sdng
den 3-4 gio chiéu dau, chi hoc tir 8-11 gio la ra roi.

(Because education system in Vietnam is different, | didn’t go to school from eight to
three or four, only from eight to eleven o’clock.)

Nguyen: Because the education system over in Vietnam is different, they don’t go to
school from, you know, eight [a.m.] to three or four p.m. They only go from eight to
about eleven [a.m.]. So he gets out then he goes to work.

VanZandt: OK. So you were working longer than you were going to school?
Tran: (chuckles) Yeah, uh-huh. Bi hoc khoang 2 hours, 3 hours rdi phai di lam.
(1 only studied for two to three hours.)

Nguyen: They only go to school about two or three hours.

VanZandt: OK. Some of the kids here would like that. (chuckles)

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: OK. So you would fish at night. And what kind of things would you
catch in your net?

Nguyen: Cha bt dugc nhitng gi?

(What could you catch?)
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Tran: O Viét Nam thi bt duoc du thir hét. Khong c6 gidng nhu bén déy chi bat tom,
cai gi dinh vao ludi ciing bat hét. Um-hm. Everything. (laughs)

(They catch everything that fall into their nets, not just like here they specialized in
shrimping.)

Nguyen: They’d catch anything that falls into the net; they’ll take.
Tran: (laughs)

Nguyen: Not like over here [where] they specialized in shrimping, they only catch
shrimp. They’d catch fish, crab, anything that falls into their net.

VanZandt: OK. Because there are some fish that aren’t here around the United
States, but are in Vietnam. Can you tell any specific kinds of fish? Did you have
oysters in Vietnam?

Tran: (shakes head)
VanZandt: No oysters.

Nguyen: Chu c6 biét loai ca nao ma ¢ Viét Nam chi bat duoc ma ¢ day khong co
khong?

(Is there any kind of fish that are not here in the U.S. but are in Vietham?)
Tran: N6 khac nhau lim, khéng c6 giéng nhau. | don’t know.

(They are very different.)

Nguyen: Yeah, he doesn’t, he can’t tell you the difference.

VanZandt: Sure, OK. Sure. But crabs and fish, shrimp.

Tran: (speaking Vietnamese)

Nguyen: All different.

VanZandt: When you caught them, then what would you do with them, who would
you sell them to? Or did you just feed your family?

Tran: Pem vé cho ban, ban cho ba con & cho.
(I catch them, bring them home, and then sell them to my neighbors at local markets.)

Nguyen: Catch them, bring them home for his family, and then sell it to his
neighbors, to the local market.

VanZandt: OK. And did you do that, and your father, or did your mother do the
selling?
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Tran: Mother.
VanZandt: Mother did.
Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: OK. (chuckles) So you just got it to Mother, and your mother did that,
OK.

Nguyen: The way those fishing villages is, it’s the whole family, you know. Each
family is a unit; the boys go do the hard labor.

Tran: (laughs)
Nguyen: And the girls, you know, the females then go to the market.

VanZandt: OK, OK. So was it always plentiful? Did you usually catch enough to
be able to feed your family, and have enough? Did you feel like you had enough, as a
child, for your family?

Nguyen: Lam vay chd c6 bat duoc dy du cho gia dinh khong?

(Is it enough for your family?)

Tran: Du luén méi ban duoc. Khéng bao gid thiéu.

(It’s always plentiful. It never lacks.)

Nguyen: Yeah. It’s always plentiful, like enough for him to sell and never lack.
Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: Wow. That’s wonderful. And so tell me, after you were older, a little bit
about your life after that. You were born in 1955, so you were living in that area
during what people in America call the Vietham War—

Tran: Yeah, Vietnam War.

VanZandt: —or in Vietnam, the American War. Do you have any memories of that
at all? Did you see anything, any fighting or anything down where you lived, as far
south as you were? Any memories of that period of time?

Nguyen: (speaking Vietnamese)
Tran: Nhiéu lam. Gan giai phdong thi thiy danh hang ngay. (laughs) Every day.
(A lot, 1 saw fights every day near the Independent Day.)

Nguyen: Yeah. He just said that—(speaking Vietnamese)—
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Tran: Yeah.

Nguyen: Yeah. They were witness to the battles and, you know, the skirmishes. It’s
almost a daily event, especially near the end of the war, near the American withdrawal
from the war.

Tran: Yeah. (chuckles)

VanZandt: Um-hm. Because you were about twenty years old. Did you have to join
the Army? The South Viethamese Army?

Tran: No.

VanZandt: OK. Why not? How did you avoid fighting, at his age?
Nguyen: Tai sao ma chi khdng phai di linh?

(How did you avoid fighting?)

Tran: Ngay xua, anh cua 0ng gia lam I6n, toan la s quan, nén t6i khong c6 bi di linh.
(laughs)

(Because there were some cousins in my family who had high ranking in the military,
so | did not have to go.)

Nguyen: Because his family, he had some—
Tran: Cousins.

Nguyen: Cousins, who were pretty high ranking in the military, so he did not need to
go.

VanZandt: You didn’t have to because of your family connections. OK. So your
cousins were high-ranking officers in the South Vietnamese Army?

Tran: (speaking Vietnamese)

Nguyen: Yes.

VanZandt: And your father did not have to fight, either?
Nguyen: Bb chu ciing khong can phai di?

(Your father did not have to fight either?)

Tran: Khong.

(No.)

Nguyen: No.
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VanZandt: OK. But you saw some [fighting] going on around you?
Tran: Nha toi c6 nhiéu ngudi 1am Ion 1im nén khéng ai dam dung vao. (laughs)
(Because of my high-ranking family, no one can touch my family.)

Nguyen: No one touched his family because his cousins were—I don’t know the
exact terminology, but I can look that up later.

VanZandt: Sure.

Nguyen: But—(speaking Vietnamese) is usually a colonel, or something like that.
VanZandt: Oh, very high.

Nguyen: (chuckles) No one wants to touch those people.

VanZandt: (laughs) You were very lucky.

Tran: Yes. (speaking Vietnamese)

Nguyen: One of his cousins is like a mayor, here.

VanZandt: Ah, of the town, OK.

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: OK. So you felt safe, pretty safe. Well, is there anything else you would
like to share about that time, Mr. Tran? Many people here, who might listen to this,
only know what they saw on TV, or heard from the American side, but not from
someone who lived there. So if there’s anything that you think of, that you remember,
that you’d like to share to help [others to] understand more about that time.

Nguyen: Chi c6 muon chia sé thém vé thoi do khong? Vi nguoi M chi biét vé chién
tranh Viét Nam theo khia canh cua ng My ma thoi, hoac la xem trén TV. Chu c6 thé
chia sé gi thém khong?

(Many people here, listening to this, only know what they saw on TV, or heard from
the American side, but not from someone who lived there. So is there anything you
want to share that help to understand more about that time?)

Tran: Hoi d6 minh thay nhiimg nguoi linh M3 di linh chung véi Vigt Nam kho qué.
Ngoai dong trong ma di vao thi nhirng kia ndp trong rirng ban, nhin toi.

(I sympathized with American.)

Nguyen: He says that during the war, when the Americans came, he sympathized
with them because they’re marching in a field, an open field, whereas the enemy is
hiding, just like guerilla warfare—
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Tran: (chuckles)

Nguyen: —so he felt sad and sorry for them because they’re getting picked off as
they’re coming in; the Americans are coming to help them, and they’re getting picked
off.

VanZandt: Did you see that in the field?
Tran: Uh-huh.
VanZandt: The [North] Vietnamese were good at hiding, underground.

Tran: (chuckle) Khdng phai la ngudi trong nam ma la (Not the South but) North of
Vietnam.

Nguyen: The North Vietnamese came down.
VanZandt: Yes, yes.

Tran: Not South. (chuckles)

VanZandt: That’s right.

Tran: North. (chuckles)

VanZandt: They were good at hiding, though. (chuckles) And did your father talk
much? Did you hear much from your cousins who were involved, if they thought the
Americans should do more, or stay longer? Or just, what kind of things did you hear,
or how did you feel about the end of the war, particularly, and what happened? How
things might have been different.

Nguyen: Chu c6 nghe gia dinh caa minh néi gi vé linh M§ vao cudi tran chién
khéng? Ho c6 nghi gi vé chuyén ngudi My nén rut lui hoac nén ¢ 1au hon khong?

(Did you hear anything that your family talked about the Americans?)
Tran: Trong thoi gian 75 thi may anh di hét roi, khdng c6 nghe gi ca.

(Around 1975, right before the American withdrew, his cousins already left, so I didn’t
hear anything.)

Nguyen: He said around 1975, right before the Americans withdrew, his officer, you
know, his cousins already, you know, left and so.

Tran: (speaking Vietnamese) (chuckles)

Nguyen: Um-hm. Yeah, they all left before the Americans withdrew. So there was
no one left over there.

VanZandt: Sure, sure. Did they get out by helicopter like so many did? Or airplane?
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Tran: Yeah.

VanZandt: So tell me, then, about how you left, Mr. Tran, and your family, and how
you decided to leave. Just about how you ended up here.

Nguyen: Gia dinh cta chi va chu di bang cach nao, quyét dinh nao gitip cho chu di?
(How did you leave Vietnam?)

Tran: Tai vi sau ndm 1975 n6 vo bét di nghia vu quan sy gidng ngay xua. Chi ’
khong di dugc. Tran dau tién la qua Mién danh v&i Mién nén chd bo nha di, gap may
nguoi ban cé tau di nita nén nhay di luén. Nam 1978. (laughs)

(When they come and took over, they forced everyone to enter military service, and
they were going to invade Cambodia. | didn’t want to join, so he snuck away. | met
up with some friends of mine who had a boat, and in 1978 | left by boat.)

Nguyen: Nam 1975 cht di luén? So after 1975, when the Communists came and
took over, they wanted to enforce everyone to enter the military service, and they were
going to invade, um—

Tran: Cambodia.

Nguyen: Yeah, Cambodia.

VanZandt: Cambodia, yes.

Tran: (laughs)

Nguyen: Around that time. The Khmer.
VanZandt: Yes, Khmer Rouge.

Nguyen: And he didn’t want to join, so he snuck away. He met up with some friends
of his who had a boat, and in 1978 he left by boat.

VanZandt: OK. That’s right, the Khmer Rouge was doing a lot of—well, genocide
was going on in Cambodia from [19]75 to [19]79.

Tran: Yeah, that’s right.

VanZandt: So those were difficult years, and you would have been sent to fight. So
you were able to avoid that with friends. So between 1975, when the Communists
took over South Vietnam, and the time you left, how did you survive? How did life
change under Communist rule? And just tell me about that time period. It must have
been very tough.

Nguyen: Tir 1975 dén 1978 thi cudc sdng caa chi thé nao?
(How was your life from ’75 to ’78?)
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Tran: Bita qua nha ban nay ¢, bita qua nha ban kia, khdng vé nha duoc vi vé nha thi
bi bat.

(I had to move from friend to friend. I can’t return home because if I did, they would
pick me up and force me to join the military.)

Nguyen: So basically he’d drift from friend to friend.
Tran: (laughs)

Nguyen: And he can’t return home, because if he returned home, then they would
pick him up and force him to join the military.

VanZandt: So they were coming to look for men like you.
Tran: (big laugh)

VanZanst: (laughs) Your age. And you had to be good at hiding now. So was this
going from friend to friend in your same village, or did you leave your town?

Nguyen: Khi chu di tir nha nay qua nha kia, chd ¢ viing d6 hay cht di dau?

(So you were going from friend to friend in your same village, or you leave your
town?)

Tran: Bo xtr.

(Out of village.)

Nguyen: Chu bo x di dau?

(To where?)

Tran: Ha Tién.

Nguyen: Yeah. He left the area, and he went to a place called Ha Tién.
VanZandt: How do you spell that?

Nguyen: H-A T-1-E-N.

VanZandt: How far away was that from your home?
Tran: Khoang 15-16 cay sb. Trong ban dd n6 & day.
(About fifteen, sixteen kilometers. It is here on the map.)
Nguyen: About fifteen, sixteen kilometers.

VanZandt: OK. OK. It may not be on there. We’re looking at this map, but it may
not be detailed enough. Was it away from the water?
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Tran: Somewhere down here (pointing to the map).

VanZandt: Ah. Oh, way down, OK. So toward, in the Gulf of Thailand area.
Tran: (laughs) Yeah, yeah.

VanZandt: Oh, my goodness. Tell me about that.

Tran: Ban bé ru 1én dudng d6 dé di bo qua Théi Lan.

(I had many friends, and they encouraged me to walk towards Thailand.)

Nguyen: He had many, many friends, and they were asking him, encouraging him to
walk towards Thailand.

Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: And how did you—so did you walk at night and hide during the day?
Did your family know where you had gone?

Tran: (speaking Vietnamese)

Nguyen: His family did not know where he was going.

Tran: Chu noi la 3 thang sau chd méi qua téi My.

(Three months later he came to America.)

Nguyen: Once he left, it was three months later, he made it to America.

VanZandt: OK. So you walked toward the Gulf of Thailand. And how do you get to
America?

Tran: Pibang tau chi.
(By boat.)

Nguyen: He said (speaking Vietnamese). He walked with his friends towards
Thailand, and he met up with friends with boats, and they sailed to Thailand. And
then from there, it was about three months later they made it to America.

VanZandt: OK. So you spent some time in Thailand.

Tran: Lac dau bon cha dinh di bo nhung ma sau d6 tim thay tau nén di bang tau ludn
(Originally we were going to walk all the way down to Thailand, but then we found
the boat. Then we went by boat.)

Nguyen: Originally, they were going to walk all the way to Thailand—

Tran: (laughs)
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Nguyen: —but then they found a boat.

VanZandt: You found a boat? Did you know whose boat it was?
Tran: Cua ban.

(My friend’s.)

Nguyen: One of their friends.

VanZandt: OK, OK, yeah. And who left with you?

Tran: Nhiéu lim. 30-40 nguoi.

(Many, thirty, forty people.)

Nguyen: It’s like about thirty-something, forty people were on that boat with him.
VanZandt: Wooden boat? Fishing boat?

Tran: Yeah.

VanZandt: About how big was that boat, how long?

Tran: Khoang 60 ft. Bé ngang khoang 12 ft.

(Sixty by twelve feet.)

Nguyen: About sixty by twelve feet; twelve by sixty feet.

VanZandt: OK, OK. So the rest of your family stayed in Vietnam, then. Were you
the only member of your family to leave? Your brothers and sisters stayed?

Tran: Con & Viét Nam hét.

(Still in Vietnam.)

Nguyen: Yeah. He’s the only one that left. They’re all still over in Vietnam.
Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: (gasp) So none of your brothers? Did they think about leaving?
Tran: No, only one. (chuckles)

VanZandt: Why do you think that was, that you were the only one?
Nguyen: Nhiing ngudi em cia cha ¢ nghi dén chuyén di khong?

(Did they think about leaving?)
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Tran: Ho muén di nhung ma so¢ bi bit nén thoi. Nam 1978 bi bat 2 1an. (chuckles)
(They wanted to go, but they were tired about getting caught, two times already.)

Nguyen: His brothers actually attempted to go, but then they were caught several
times, so eventually they just, you know, grew tired of getting caught, and they gave
up. So they just decided to stay.

VanZandt: Did anyone, or any of your family go to what was called reeducation
camp?

Nguyen: Gia dinh cht ¢6 ai di cai tao khong?

(Did anyone in your family go to reeducation camp?)

Tran: Co cha toi va mot ngudi em gai.

(My father and my sister.)

Nguyen: His father and one of his sisters had to go to reeducation.
VanZandt: OK. How long were they there? Do you know?
Tran: Bathéng.

(Three months.)

Nguyen: Three months.

VanZandt: Three months, OK. Not too, too long

Tran: Not too long, no.

VanZandt: Some were three years and longer.

Tran: Lam viéc nhe cho 4p, cho x4 théi.

(The work was very light. They worked for local offices.)

Nguyen: So their reeducation was very light. He worked for the local office, the
government office.

VanZandt: And then he was able to return home? He and your sister came back
home?

Tran: (nods head.)

VanZandt: OK. So you left in 1978. Tell me about your journey, once you left from
Thailand. Did you come straight to the United States, or go anywhere else?

Tran: Thang 10 nam 1978 & Thai lan, thang 1 nam 1979 qua t&i Hawaii.
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(October 1978 | reached Thailand and stayed there until January 1979. | reached
Hawaii then.)

Nguyen: Hm, OK. October 1978, he reached Thailand and stayed there all the way
until January 1979, and he reached Hawaii then.

VanZandt: OK, by boat, as well?
Tran: No, flying. (chuckles)
Nguyen: Reached by plane to Hawaii.
VanZandt: (laughing)

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: Quicker trip. (laughter) When you were in Thailand, were you at a
camp? Were you at a refugee camp that arranged his flight to Hawaii?

Nguyen: Khi ¢ Thai Lan chu ¢ trai ti nan a?

(When you stayed in Thailand, you stayed at the camps?)

Tran: Yeah.

Nguyen: Ho cho chu vé may bay qua My? Yes.

(They gave you tickets to the U.S.?)

VanZandt: Does he remember the name of the camp?

Nguyen: Chu co6 nhé tén cua trai ti nan khong?

(Did you remember the name of the camp?)

Tran: Songkhla.

Nguyen: Chu c6 thé ghi qua day?

(Can you write the name?)

Tran: LA&u qua rdi, quén roi.

(No, I forgot. It was a long time ago.)

VanZandt: Thank you, that helps. S-O-N-G-K-H-L-A. Songkhla.
Tran: Yes.

VanZandt: In Thailand. When you found out that you were coming to the United

States, what was your reaction?
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Nguyen: Phan tng caa cha khi chd biét chu duoc qua M§?
(What were your reactions?)
Tran: (laughs) Happy.

VanZandt: Happy? OK. What did you know about the United States? What were
his expectations? Did he know very much about what to expect?

Nguyen: Lac d6 cha biét gi vé nugc My, chd ¢ hi vong gi?
(What did you expect?)

Tran: May dng anh ¢ Dallas néi 1a ding di dau ngoai di My, cudc séng sé thoai mai
hon.

(I already got family in Dallas. They sent me some money, and they said don’t go
anywhere else but the U.S.)

Nguyen: Yeah. So at that time, he had some family in Dallas. And they sent him
some money, and they said that—

Tran: Go United States, don’t [care] where. (laughs)
Nguyen: (chuckles) Yeah, just get here.

VanZandt: Go to the U.S.!

Nguyen: Don’t go anywhere else.

VanZandt: (chuckles) Just come here, and they would try to connect with you. So
where did you—you went to Hawaii, and then from Hawaii where did you go?

Tran: 1 nam ¢ Hawaii.

(One year in Hawaii.)

Nguyen: (speaking Vietnamese)
Tran: (speaking Vietnamese)
Nguyen: He stayed in Hawaii—
Tran: One year.

Nguyen: —for one year.
VanZandt: For one year.

Nguyen: And he came directly to New Orleans from Hawaii.
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VanZandt: OK. What did you do for one year in Hawaii?
Tran: Hoc cach di chg. (chuckles)
(Go to the market.)

Nguyen: They taught him how to, you know, to assimilate to American society. How
to go to the market and how to deal with daily life here.

VanZandt: OK. How was that different from your life in Vietnam?
Nguyen: Cudc séng & Hawaii khac cudc sbng & Viét Nam thé nao?
(How was that different from your life in Vietnam?)

Tran: Doi séng qua dé dang minh ciing thay vui.

(Life is easier. | basically felt happy.)

Nguyen: It’s very different, very, um—there’s more cars here, and he’s more happy.
And basically, that’s it.

VanZandt: Yeah. Lots of cars. You’d never seen so many cars. (laughter)
Tran: Yeah. (laughs)

VanZandt: What were the challenges? What were the biggest challenges that you
had to overcome, making that change from life in Vietnam to the United States, and
New Orleans?

Nguyen: Tr& ngai 16n nhat cua chu 1a gi khi thay doi cudc song?
(What were the biggest challenges you have to overcome?)
Tran: Nha nuéc cho tién hoc, an, . O Viét Nam minh phai tu lo hét.

(U.S. government gave me everything. | had to deal with everything on my own in
Vietnam.)

Nguyen: Y t6i muén hoi vé khé khan & M§?
(About difficulties in the U.S.)

Tran: Khdng c6 kho khan gi ca ngoai trir ngdn ngir. Nhung sau mot thoi gian cling s&
khac phuc dugc.

(The only difficulty is the language, but over time it would be okay.)

Nguyen: He said that he found it more(?) challenging in America, because here the
American government provides welfare money, and provides money for him to go to
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school, and just more comfortable over here, compared to Vietnam. The only difficult
thing he had was the language barrier. But then he said that over time, you know, he
picked it up on the streets, and he got more comfortable with it.

VanZandt: Sure. That would be difficult. | can imagine. When were you first able
to get word to your family, to your mother and father, that you were safe and you were
in the United States? Was that a long period of time, or were you able to
communicate with them along the way?

Nguyen: Khi nao chu lién lac lai voi gia dinh 1an dau tién?
(When did you tell your family that you are safe in the U.S.?)

Tran: Lau lim. 10 nim md&i goi dién thoai vé. V& lai Viét nam lan dau tién nim
1994,

(It took me ten years to make a phone call to my family, and | returned home in 1994.)
Nguyen: He had to wait about ten years to make a phone call to his family.

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: Ten years, Mr. Tran?!

Nguyen: In 1994, he was able to go back over there to visit.

VanZandt: For the first time, in 1994, OK. So for ten years your family didn’t know
where you were?

Tran: Ho nghi toi chét hodc mat tich roi. (laughs)

(They thought 1 died.)

Nguyen: His family thought he had passed away or died somewhere.
Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: What was that first phone call like, when they heard from you?
Tran: Ho khoc 16c. (chuckle)

(They cried.)

Nguyen: They were overjoyed over there. They were crying.

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: | canimagine. Wow. | bet your mother was very happy to hear from
you.

This transcript is for reference and research purposes only. It is protected by copyright. Permission to publish must be requested from the Center
for Oral History and Cultural Heritage. Contact information can be found at http://www.usm.edu/oral-history.


http://www.usm.edu/oral-history

25

Tran: Yeah.

VanZandt: And how had life been for them? How had it changed, and how was life
for them? Was your father still able to fish like he used to, or did life change very
much after [the war]?

Tran: N6 ldy hét tu vi n6 so minh di vuot bién.

(They took my father’s boat because they were afraid people would escape from
Vietnam.)

(some Vietnamese spoken here not transcribed or translated in above passage.)

Nguyen: Yeah. They confiscated his father’s boat because they were afraid that he
would use it to, you know, escape from Vietnam. And so his family quit fishing. As
for him over in America, he worked odd jobs, at grocery stores, just odd jobs.

VanZandt: Um-hm. And you learned the trade. You learned the business—
Tran: (shy laugh)

VanZandt: —so you could own your own. So your father wasn’t able to fish
anymore. Life must have been harder, much harder for them. What about your
brothers and sisters? Were they able to go to school? Or, what kind of jobs were they
able to have? Because | know that life changed a lot after the Communists took over.
It was very difficult for the South Vietnamese to find work, sometimes.

Tran: Ho Ion hét rdi, 1ap gia dinh, di xay dung, lam moc.

(So at that time they were grown up, they were married, and they learned to build
houses.)

Nguyen: Hbi méi giai phong?
(Near the Independent Day.)
Tran: Uh-huh.

Nguyen: Around that time, they were already somewhat grown, and getting married,
and so his family was somewhat stable. They went to work building houses, and stuff
like that.

VanZandt: OK. And so 1994, you went back to visit. Tell me about that. What was
that like seeing them again, after all those years?

Tran: Lan dau vé sg lim. (laughs)

(I'was scared.)
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Nguyen: The first time he went back, he was so scared. He was scared he was going
to get caught by the Communists.

Tran: Yeah. (laughs)

VanZandt: | canimagine. So did you take certain—were there certain things you
had to do to make sure you were safe there? Had you heard stories about people being
kept there and not allowed to come back? Was that the fear?

Tran: Vi ciing c6 nhiéu ngudi ban vé nude trude roi nén toi ciing ¢b gang di.
(My friends came home before, so | tried, t0o.)

Nguyen: Chi cé nghe chuyén c6 ai vé bi bat hay khong?

(Did you hear about someone getting caught?)

Tran: Ho noi 1a s& khdng bi bat dau.

(They said they hadn’t been caught.)

Nguyen: He said that even though he was scared, he went with a group of his friends,
and he also had many friends who already went back before him, and they reassured
him that it’s OK; you won’t get caught, you know, pulled away or get caught, so it’s
OK. So he’s a little bit more reassured because (inaudible), he was a little scared.

VanZandt: Sure. I’d still be nervous, I’'m sure.
Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: Well, Mr. Tran, did your family still live in the same home where you
grew up?

Tran: Chi c6 cha va em trai Ut.
(Only my father and my youngest brother.)

Nguyen: Only his father and his youngest brother were staying in the house.
Everyone else had gone off, married.

VanZandt: Married—
Tran: Uh-huh, married.

VanZandt: OK, OK. Well then, tell me about your life here in New Orleans. So you
came to New Orleans in 19—do you remember what year you came to New Orleans?

Tran: [19]80, *80.

VanZandt: Nineteen eighty, you came to New Orleans. And why New Orleans?
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Tran: Ma’am?

VanZandt: Why did you come here?

Tran: Ban tdi 1am viéc & day va néi la sdng ¢ day thoai mai lam.
(My friend working here said that living here was comfortable.)

Nguyen: Because he has a friend who’s been set up here, and his friend called him
over [and] said it’s nice, comfortable living here. And he worked with his friend, you
know. He went fishing with his friend here.

VanZandt: OK. So did you live with your friend at first, when you moved here?
Tran: Uh-huh.

VanZandt: And started out fishing some with him?

Tran : Pau tién 1a di ndu 4n 1-2 thang sau d6 méi di tau. (laughs)

(I started with cooking in a restaurant for one or two months before I went fishing
again.)

Nguyen: (speaking Vietnamese)
Tran: (speaking Vietnamese)

Nguyen: The first thing he did here was, he was a cook in a restaurant for about, a
couple of months—

Tran: (laughs)

Nguyen: —before he went fishing.
VanZandt: (laughs) OK. Cooking seafood?
Tran: Chinese. Chinese food.

VanZandt: Chinese food, OK. Did you know how to cook Chinese food, or was that
something new for you?

Tran: Hbi d6 co di hoc & Hawaii.

(I learned in Hawaii.)

Nguyen: He learned that in Hawaii.

Tran: Uh-huh. Three months(?). (chuckles)

VanZandt: Oh! You learned a lot in Hawaii. Did you learn any English at all, on the
way? Some English, too?
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Tran: Vira di hoc, vira di lam.
(I learned English and cooking, t00.)

Nguyen: While he was in Hawaii during that year, he learned English, and learned
how to cook, too.

VanZandt: That gave you some skills.
Tran: (chuckle)

VanZandt: So you cooked here for a restaurant, and then what did you do? I’'m
curious about how you started your business.

Nguyen: Sao cht mua dugc cai groceries?
(How did you buy the grocery stores?)
Tran: Dindu 3-4 thang, di 1am 7-8 thang. CA tién 15000$-20000$ 13 1am dwoc rdi.

(I finished cooking after three or four months and went fishing for seven or eight
months, and | saved about $20,000, and that was enough for me to open a grocery
store.)

Nguyen: Once he finished a couple months as a cook, he went fishing for about
seven, eight months. And he said that back then you earned a lot of money fishing, so
he saved up about $20000, and that was enough for him to get his own store.

VanZandt: And so you loved fishing in Vietham. What made you save your money
and leave fishing to start your own business, to start the grocery store? Did you think
that would be an easier life, or you wanted to just own your own business? Why leave
fishing?

Nguyen: (speaking Vietnamese)
Tran: Boi vi ¢ bang Lousiana lic d6 md groceris stores kiém tién dé hon duéi bién.

(In New Orleans at that time, owning a grocery store could earn money easier than
fishing.)

Nguyen: At that time, here in New Orleans, it’s easier to make money when you own
your own store. He said that he could easily make a hundred grand ($100,000)
owning a grocery store, compared to going fishing, [which] is a lot less profit.

VanZandt: And you never know what—

Tran: (laughs)
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VanZandt: —you’re going to catch and be able to sell it for. OK. So where was
your business, your first business located? Was it around this Versailles area?

Tran: Yeah. On the (inaudible) and Gentilly, Louisa(?)

Nguyen: His first place is Louisa(?) and Gentilly.

VanZandt: OK. So what kind of things did you sell in your grocery store?
Nguyen: (speaking Vietnamese)

Tran: DPu hét, cira hang I6n ma. Mua véi gia $120,000.

(Everything. | bought it for $120,000.)

(some Vietnamese spoken here not transcribed or translated in above passage.)

Nguyen: He said he sold all sorts of convenient-store stuff, and some meat, some
fish. He said he did have a lot of people working for him because it was a big store
that he bought. And for that time, he bought it for about a hundred twenty-something
thousand dollars, which is, you know, that’s pretty big(?) for a grocery store.

VanZandt: So you sold local seafood, too?
Tran: Chican bé $20000 vao ngan hang 1a ho cho vay $100000.
(I put $20,000 in the bank, and they gave me $100,000 loan.)

Nguyen: (chuckle) He was able to get such a big place because it was so easy to get
a loan from the bank, with a small down payment.

Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: But you worked hard saving. A lot of people aren’t good at saving
money. You’re good at saving money. Well, tell me about then, you said you lost the
store in Katrina. So can you tell me a little bit about what happened to your store and
to you personally in Katrina? Did you stay here during the storm to take care of the
store? Just a little bit about your Katrina experience.

Tran: Hoi bdo khong c6 ra tiém, 7 ngay & trén néc nha. (laughs)
(I stayed seven days on the roof.)

Nguyen: During the Katrina period, he did not leave New Orleans because he had to
watch the store. He ended up staying on the very top of his house for seven days.

VanZandt: For seven days, on top of your house?! The roof?

Tran: (chuckles) Yeah. Tdi phai doi helicopter dén don.
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(I waited until the helicopter picked him up.)

Nguyen: He waited until the airlift—

Tran: Helicopter. (laughs)

Nguyen: —the airlift from Houston came and picked him up. (chuckle)
VanZandt: Mr. Tran—

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: —you were airlifted from your roof? Was the water too high?
Tran Nudc gan dén ndc nha.

(It was up to the ceiling.)

Nguyen: The water came all the way up to the ceiling.

VanZandt: So you went as high as you could get to escape the water.
Tran: Uh-huh.

VanZandt: Where was your home? Was it in this—

Tran: (speaking Vietnamese)—Bullard.

Nguyen: His house is on Bullard.

VanZandt: OK, Bullard Street. So what was that seven days like? Tell me about
that.

Nguyen: 7 ngay d6 ra sao?

(What was that seven days like?)

Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: Did you have any food or water?

Tran: Yeah, yeah. (chuckles)

VanZandt: You owned a grocery store—

Tran and Nguyen: (laughs)

VanZandt: —I’m thinking, surely you were prepared with something.

Tran: DPay da hét. C6 5-6 ngudi & cung dé coi tiém ma.

30

This transcript is for reference and research purposes only. It is protected by copyright. Permission to publish must be requested from the Center

for Oral History and Cultural Heritage. Contact information can be found at http://www.usm.edu/oral-history.


http://www.usm.edu/oral-history

31

(There were five or six people with him to watch the store.)

Nguyen: So he said there were like five, six people staying with him to watch the
store, around that period. They survived on chips and water. (chuckles)

VanZandt: That works.
Tran: Yeah, that work.

VanZandt: Chips and water. OK, and were you able to check on your store at all,
after Katrina? Did you know what had happened to your store, stores? He had more
than one.

Nguyen: Lac d6 cha c6 may tiém roi?

(How many stores did you still have?)

Tran: con ¢ 1 tiém 16n nhat thoi.

(Only the biggest one.)

Nguyen: At that point, he only had the one, big one—khi ch( tré lai thi tiém sao roi?
(How was it when you were back?)

Tran: My den v 13y hét, rdi bdo nira, khi minh quay lai con céi khung khéng.

(They took everything, and after the storm, the stores were just skeletons.)

Nguyen: Um, so his store got looted, and it did get damaged—

Tran: (chuckles)

Nguyen: —from the flood. And once he came back, there was nothing left of a
skeleton.

VanZandt: Did you have insurance?
Tran: (nods head).

VanZandt: Good. So you had to pick up and start over again. Was your house, were
you able to repair your house?

Tran: Phai 1am lai hét. Hu hét.
(All damage.)
Nguyen: Like, he had to basically start over; everything was damaged.

VanZandt: Were you able to do some of that work yourself?
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Tran: (speaking Vietnamese)

Nguyen: Cai nha d6 chu tu stra ha?
(You fixed your house on your own?)
Tran: (speaking Vietnamese)

Nguyen: He fixed up his house himself.

VanZandt: Good, OK. So Mr. Tran, that must have been really difficult losing a
business you’d worked so hard to grow. And it was very successful, it sounds like.
So then you decided to go back to fishing and shrimping? Did you do that as a
deckhand, or how did you get back into fishing?

Nguyen: Thé rdi chi quyét dinh di bién lai?
(Did you decide to go back to fishing and shrimping?)

Tran: Luc d6 kinh té ciing xudng rdi, c6 thang ban ra di bién nira. N6 ¢6 tau thé 1a di
ludn. No chua c6 quoc tich.

(1 did that business for so long, and the economy was going down. My friend had a
boat, too, so | went back to fishing. He didn’t have the citizenship yet.)

Nguyen: So his store was completely gone, and he said he’s been working from, you
know, he’s owned his store for so long, and then the economy was going down. So he
had a friend who has a boat, called him to join him in fishing. And his friend didn’t
have citizenship yet, but he has, so he came and worked for him.

VanZandt: OK. So you were able to help him, too, together. And was it his shrimp
boat?

Tran: (nods head)

VanZandt: OK. So what year was that, 2006, that you started fishing again?
Nguyen: Nim 2006 1a cht di bién lai?

(Was it 2006 that you started fishing?)

Tran: Um-hm.

Nguyen: Two thousand six.

VanZandt: OK. | have never been on a shrimp boat.

Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: I’ve walked out on a shrimp boat.
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Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: But I’ve never been shrimping on a shrimp boat. So can you sort of paint
a picture for me? If | were to go out on your boat shrimping with you, what would
that day be like, or night? Can you just tell me, in your own words, about what it’s
like to go out? How long you’re gone? And what that life is like out on the sea, and
looking for the catch. How do you know where to go? And just all those kind of
things. (chuckles)

Nguyen: Ba 4y ndi 1a chua bao gio di bién bét td. Ch c6 thé n6i cho ba dy biét 1
ngay di bién cua chu l1a nhu thé nao khéng?

(Can you tell me what did you do in one day on the boat?)

Tran: Mot chuyén di 1a 2 tuan I&, trudc khi di phai lay dau, da d6 dn. Ra ngoai do
minh cé 1 cai may, minh s€ tham do xem cho nao co nhiéu ca roi minh bat.

(One trip is in two weeks. Before I go out he has to prepare for food, oil and supplies.
I had a radar machine out there, and it will tell where there is lots of fish or shrimps.)

Nguyen: Yeah. So each trip takes about two weeks. And before he embarks on the
trip, they prepare by going, you know, buying two weeks worth of food and oil and
supplies. And once they go out onto the water, they have a machine, the radar
machine, to tell them if the area has a lot of fish or shrimp, any catch. So he casts the
net to get a feel for what is there, and if it’s good, then that’s where they will stay for a
while.

Tran: (chuckle)

VanZandt: OK. So the radar helps.

Tran: Yeah. (chuckles)

VanZandt: Shrimp over here; go this way! (chuckles)

Tran: O My nd c6 may moc nén cai gi ciing dé.

(Fishing in America is easier.)

Nguyen: Yeah. Fishing in America is so easy because you have radar to rely upon.

VanZandt: (laughs) That’s right. In Vietnam, you didn’t know where to go. It was
just luck, right.

Tran: No.

VanZandt: How many people does it take, on your boat, to be able to run the boat
the way you need to on a two-week trip?

This transcript is for reference and research purposes only. It is protected by copyright. Permission to publish must be requested from the Center
for Oral History and Cultural Heritage. Contact information can be found at http://www.usm.edu/oral-history.


http://www.usm.edu/oral-history

34

Tran: 3 nguoi.

(Three people.)

Nguyen: Three people.

VanZandt: Just three people? OK. Captain, two deckhands?

Tran: Two deckhands. Nhung ma big boat thi can 4 ngudi.

(If it’s a big boat then you need four people.)

Nguyen: If it’s a big boat they need four people.

VanZandt: OK. What size boat do you usually go out on, on a two-week trip?
Tran: (speaking Vietnamese)

Nguyen: Twenty-five feet by seventy-five feet.

VanZandt: OK. That’s a good size boat. Steel hull? Not wooden! (chuckles)
Tran: No, not wood. (smiles) Steel.

VanZandt: Steel, OK. And was it difficult—because in Vietnam, | know there aren’t
all the fishing regulations and rules that you have to go by, but here there are. Was
that difficult to adjust to, to learn? Was that an adjustment?

Nguyen: O Viét Nam khi di bién khong c6 nhiéu luat I¢, con bén M thi ¢. Vay chu
c6 gip kho khan gi khi di bién khong?

(There are not many regulations in fishing in Vietnam, but there are in America. So
there are many regulations to learn and to adjust.)

Tran: Khong c6 kho khin gi ca. Mdi dau mua ho dua cho cudn sach huéng dan ca
nao bat va ca nao tha, minh ct lam theo thdi. Do6i khi chi bat tom.

(Each season they give you guidelines what’s to catch and what’s not. If I don’t know
he could ask my children. Or I just catch shrimps.)

Nguyen: Yeah. Over in Vietnam, there’s no rules. But over here, there’s rules. And
each open season, when the season first opens, they give you guidelines, like what
fish, what species you can have. But whatever he doesn’t understand from the
guidelines, he asks his children. But for him it’s easy because all he does is catch
shrimp.

Tran: (chuckles)
VanZandt: (laughs) That’s true. So you don’t have to worry about it, OK. So and
today is the begining of season. Is that right? You said today?
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Tran: Yeah, today. No no. Pau mua la thang 4-5.

(The beginning of season is in April or May.)

Nguyen: He said the season started back in April—

Tran: May.

Nguyen: —or May. And right now it’s just opened.
VanZandt: OK. So do you plan on going out anytime soon?
Tran: 1 thang nira mai ra dugc. (laughs)

(After one month.)

Nguyen: (laughs) Yeah. He’s taking off for about a month, because there’s hardly
anything out there right now.

VanZandt: OK. So you already know there’s not much out there. So there’s no
reason to spend the money.

Tran: Boi vi hom trude di mot 1an réi ma 16 roi, 6-7000 gi do.
(Before I went out for one week, and | had a loss about six or seven thousand dollars.)

Nguyen: Last time, he went out for about a week, they had a loss of about six or
seven thousand dollars.

VanZandt: OK. Well, people who might hear that might wonder, “Is that because of
the oil spill?” You said there’s not much [shrimp] out there. So can we just maybe
jump forward to a little over a year ago now, when the BP [Deepwater Horizon] oil
spill happened, in April of last year. Can you tell me how your occupation, your life,
was impacted by the oil spill? And just tell me a little bit about that over the last year.

Nguyen: C phai vi dau tran?

(Was it because of the oil spill?)

Tran: Anh huong nhiéu 1am, dau tran vao hét cac séng ho.
(Yes, much affected.)

Nguyen: So the first, the impact is that, once there’s a spill, the oil leaked into the
ponds and the marshes and the area along the Grand Isle coast that he’s used to. So all
the shrimp died, and there’s not much left. And what was the second part?

VanZandt: So that’s the area that you were shrimping then, Grand Isle?

Nguyen: (speaking Vietnamese)—Grand Isle?
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Tran: Yeah, and Houma, Morgan [City], Delacroix.
Nguyen: Like Houma, yeah.

VanZandt: OK. And so the shrimp were affected by the oil spill, then? And there
was a period of time when you didn’t know what was open—

Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: —and you couldn’t go out, and you’re waiting to hear, and didn’t know
what to do. Just tell me about what that was like. Were there times that you went out
and invested in the oil and your supplies and didn’t catch anything? Or saw oil? Just
tell me about that, over the last year. How often did you go out over this last year?
Have you been out—

Nguyen: Tur ltc dau tran ch ra bién bao nhiéu 14n?
(How many times did you go out after the oil spill?)

Tran: Niam ngoai ra bién ¢6 1 1an 1 tuan ma khong bét duoc gi nén nim nay méi ra
lai. (chuckles)

(I went out one time last year for one week, and | didn’t catch anything, so | came
back until this year.)

Nguyen: In this past year, he went out one time. He went out originally one time for
a week, and there’s nothing there. And so his boat’s been, his friend’s boat’s been
docked until this year. And came out and found there’s just open water(?), there’s
nothing there.

Tran: Uh-huh.

VanZandt: Hm. So what has happened to the shrimp? | mean, what do you think?
Tran: Dead. (laughs)

Nguyen: He thinks they’re all dead. (chuckles)

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: Really?

Tran: Yeah.

VanZandt: Is that what people think?

Tran: Tu (inaudible) la khdng co ¢4, tom chi c6 water. (chuckles)

(Nothing is alive.)
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Nguyen: From the area from Delchamps—

Tran: Venice.

Nguyen: Venice.

Tran: Delkum(?).

Nguyen: Delkum? And Venice.

VanZandt: Delkum and Venice.

Nguyen: That area, there’s just, nothing that’s alive down there.
Tran: Not alive there.

Nguyen: No fish, no shrimp.

Tran: Empire(?), Grand Isle, Morgan, Houma, Delkum, no (inaudible).
VanZandt: No shrimp.

Tran: No.

VanZandt: What about other fish? Do you hear about tuna?

Tran: Chi c6 miy tau to ra ngoai khoi thi bat duoc ca to thoi, con dau thi khong c6 gi
het. (chuckles)

(People who have bigger boats, they can go far to the coast, and they can catch tuna
or bigger fish.)

Nguyen: For those who are able, who have like bigger boats that they can go farther
out to sea, they’re able to catch tuna or bigger fish. But closer to the coast, there’s
hardly anything.

VanZandt: OK. So hard for the shrimpers.
Tran: Yeah, hard.

VanZandt: Yeah. Well, what do you think the future holds for shrimpers, then? If
you’re not catching anything, and nobody wants to put all that money out up front—

Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: —when they don’t know, can’t be assured that it’s going to be safe to eat
if they do catch anything. What do you think’s going to happen? Do you plan on
staying in the shrimping industry?
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Nguyen: Chii nghi gi vé tuong lai ctia di lam tom s& ra sa0? Chu co y dinh bo nghé
khéng?

(What do you think about the future of shrimping? Did you think about quitting?)

Tran: Chéc van lam cha. Lam khong duoc niva thi 18n khiéu nai véi VCCF, kéu n6
tra tien. (laughs)

(I still go fishing.)
Nguyen: Chu nghi gi vé twong lai ciia nganh nay?
(What do you think about the future of shrimping?)

Tran: Sau nay chic bj that bai, vi bay gid khdng c6 gi, chic vai ndm sau méi 9 lai.
(Shrimping now are greatly declined, and you have to wait for the long term. There’s
nothing right now.)

Nguyen: He said that shrimping, in general, right now has greatly declined. And you
have to wait for the long term for it to recover. There’s nothing right now. And for
him, what he’s saying, he had to do is file claims for the shrimping damages. There’s
nothing else he can do.

VanZandt: Yeah. And I’ve heard that from people in the oyster business. That they
feel like it may even get better, and a lot stronger harvests may be a few years from
now, so it’s just going to be maybe this few years that may be tough. So you do have
hope that it will come back, just takes some time?

Nguyen: Chu cé hi vong vai nam sau s€ trd lai lam khong?
(Maybe a few years from now, so you still want to come back?)
Tran: Vai nam.

(Couple of years)

Nguyen: Yes, he’ll just wait a few years.

VanZandt: Yeah. I’ve been hearing that, too. It’s hard to hold out, find something
else to do. Well, I heard earlier today, and I’m looking at the book that you have by
you. And this was a USDA [United States Department of Agriculture] program to
help retrain some fishermen, and maybe offer some cash to help you learn business
management, and come up with a business proposal, maybe. So you’re working on
that.

Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: (chuckles) And you’ve got a little bit, about four thousand dollars from
that. So how do you feel about that?
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Tran: It be OK, good. (laughs)
VanZandt: Something to do now?
Tran: Yeah.

VanZandt: OK. Well, have you thought about going back into the grocery business?
No?

Tran: So, chd so 1am business. Tién thi nhiéu ma &p luc Iam. Chu con bi bén 3 lan
noa.

(No. I found business stressful for the money. And I got shot three times in the past. |
don’t want to return to the business.)

Nguyen: He said that he is not going back to the grocery business because it’s a
stressful job for the money. And he has been shot three times before, in the past.

Tran: (laughs)

Nguyen: So he does not want to return to the business.

VanZandt: Umph, Mr. Tran.

Tran: Chu s bi ban lai.

(I’m too scared that it would happen again.)

Nguyen: Yeah, he’s permanently quitting from—

Tran: (laughs)

Nguyen: —grocery stores because he’s too scared that will happen again.

VanZandt: Oh, my goodness. That’s a little detail you didn’t mention earlier. Was
that being robbed?

Tran: Yes.

VanZandt: My goodness. Well, it sounds like maybe fishing might be a little bit—
Tran: Little bit better. (laughs)

VanZandt: —a little bit safer?

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: Do you have any crazy fishing stories of out at sea? Storms, sharks, any
interesting fishing stories? None?

Tran: (shakes head) (laughs)

This transcript is for reference and research purposes only. It is protected by copyright. Permission to publish must be requested from the Center
for Oral History and Cultural Heritage. Contact information can be found at http://www.usm.edu/oral-history.


http://www.usm.edu/oral-history

40

VanZandt: Really? None?

Nguyen: C6 cau chuyén nao vé ca map.. khdng cha?

(Do you have any crazy fishing stories like storms, sharks? Anything interesting?)
Tran: Khong cé, khdng cé s¢ bang l1am trén b, 1am trén bo ghé 1am.

(It’s calm; there’s really nothing. It’s quite relaxing.)

Nguyen: It’s very calm out there. He didn’t really encounter anything. And he said
it’s relaxing because there’s nothing to do but just sit around and just shoot the breeze.
(chuckles)

VanZandt: | wondered what—I was going to ask, “What do you do in your down
time when you’re waiting for the shrimp?”

Tran: Go to sleep. (laughs)
VanZandt: Sleep? Yeah.
Tran: Yeah.

VanZandt: Well, that does sound like a very relaxing way to spend your time. Not
being shot at, in the grocery store. There’s also been a challenge for shrimpers with
competition from foreign imports: Vietnam and Brazil, and other places. And high,
rising fuel prices. So one of the initiatives that this Mary Queen of Vietnam CDC is
working on is farm-raised fish, and agroponics. So not catching fish out in the wild,
but raising it here on the land. What do you think about that?

Nguyen: Nghé di bién gio bi de doa boi nhimg nudc nhap khau, va bei vay mot
trong nhimg chuong trinh cua CDC Ia day cho nguoi di bién biét nubi cé trong ho.
Chu nghi gi vé van dé nay?

(There’s also been a challenge for shrimpers with competition from imports:
Vietnam, Brazil, and other places. One of the CDC program is training for them to
raise fish. What do you think about that?)

Tran: Canh tranh v6i My thi cling khong lai M. Tom nhiéu, du di. Néu nhu khong
6 bi dau thi dem lai rat nhiéu tém tép.

(I’'m not constrained with competition because there were plenty of shrimps here. It
just because of the oil spill.)

S

Nguyen: Nhung bay gio?
(How about now?)
Tran: Bay gio chiu thua.
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(Now, no.)

Nguyen: Néu nudc My ra hd nhu vy chd 1am sao?

(If the U.S. processes the home-raise shrimping, what would you do?)
Tran: Thi nubi théi. (chuckles)

(OK, I’ll go with it.)

Nguyen: Without the oil spill, he’s not concerned with competition from other
countries because he said that the waters around here, it’s very plentiful. Because of
the oil spill now, there’s hardly anything there, so | asked him if going into farm-
raised shrimp—so he said if he has to, he has to. (chuckles)

Tran: (chuckles)
VanZandt: Kicking and screaming. Only if you have to.
Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: (chuckles) Wouldn’t be as much fun as being out on the water. Uh-huh.
What do you like about fishing out on the water? What do you like best?

Nguyen: Diéu gi chd thich nhit khi di bién?
(What do you like about fishing out in the water?)
Tran: Thay thich thi va khong suy nghi gi ca.
(Happy, calm and comfortable.)

Nguyen: It’s, you know, just out in the open water, he’s working on the shrimp, and
you know, it’s calming, and it’s comfortable. And he doesn’t have to think too much.

Tran: (laughs)
Nguyen: It’s not stressful. It’s carefree.

VanZandt: Got you, yeah. When you come back with your shrimp, who do you sell
to? You bring it to the dock, and then what happens to your catch? Who gets paid,
and where does it go, and do you keep some for yourself, friends?

Nguyen: Khi chu tra lai bo, chi ban xong chu c6 git lai khéng?
(What happens to your catch? Did you keep anything?)
Tran: CO gitt lai 1 it cho gia dinh, con lai ban cho vya.

(I keep a small portion for my family, then I sell it to the company.)
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Nguyen: So when he comes back, he keeps a small portion for his family, and then
the rest, he sells it to the—

Tran: Company.

Nguyen: —the company that’s there, yeah.

VanZandt: OK. Is it normally one particular company, or does that vary?
Tran: Anywhere, anywhere.

VanZandt: Anyone? Anyone who’ll buy. (laughs)

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: So if you were to bring some in today, how much is a pound of shrimp
going for now? How much can you get for it?

Nguyen: Bén 1 pound bao nhiéu?
Tran: Con tly, cd lic 4-5 ddng, cé ldc 2 dong.
(It depends. Maybe four or five dollars, maybe two dollars. Can’t tell.)

Nguyen: It ranges. It depends on the chefs, or whoever the buyer is. Sometimes they
offer four dollars, and sometimes they offer two-something [dollars]. So he can’t tell.

VanZandt: And what was the highest—I know there were some good years back in
the [19]80s. What were the good days? What were the best days with the highest
prices that you could get, the good ole days?

Nguyen: Gia cao nhat ma chii ban dugc |a bao nhiéu?
(What was the best day with the highest price you can get?)
Tran: 6 dong.

(Six dollars.)

Nguyen: He said about six dollars.

VanZandt: When was that?

Nguyen: Hdi nao?

(When?)

Tran: Nam nao cling vay.

(Every year.)
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Nguyen: So, every year there’s a period where we catch really big, really good
shrimp. And they can get up to about six dollars.

VanZandt: OK. So you haven’t seen it steadily decline since—

Tran: (chuckle)

Nguyen: Gia tdm miy nam trudc day chu co thay 1én hay xudng khéng?
(How about the price these years?)

Tran: Lic trudc né xudng, gan day lai 18n. Ngay xwa co lac lai 1én, khong giéng
nhau duoc.

(Before it dramatically rise, for a couple of years it go up and down again.)
Nguyen: So he says that, a while ago. He just said “before,”—
VanZandt: Sure.

Nguyen: —there was a period that it just dramatically increased, and that, you know,
for a couple of years it went down a little bit—

Tran: (chuckles)
Nguyen: —and then it goes up, and then it goes down, so. Year to year, it just—

VanZandt: Sure, sure. As long as we don’t have any more oil spills, no more
Katrinas, it might be better. Well, you mentioned you have children. How many
children do you have?

Tran: Only one.

VanZandt: Just one. Boy or girl?

Tran: Girl.

VanZandt: Girl. How old is she?

Tran: Twenty-five.

VanZandt: Twenty-five? OK. Does she live here, in New Orleans?
Tran: Unh-uh. Vietnam. (chuckles)

VanZandt: Vietnam? With your wife, you mentioned your wife, too.
Tran: Uh-huh.

VanZandt: But you get to go back every year, you said. What does your wife do in
Vietnam?
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Nguyen: O Viét Nam vo chi 1am céi gi?

(What does your wife do in Vietham?)

Tran: T6i mua cho ba 4y mot nah may cha gao.

(I bought her a rice plant.)

Nguyen: He bought her a rice plant.

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: Mr. Tran, that’s a nice gift. So she can grow her own, and—
Nguyen: No. The rice plant is basically, that’s where they bring in the rice.
VanZandt: Oh, a plant, the factory.

Nguyen: Yes, the factory, the rice factory.

VanZandt: Wow.

Nguyen: Where they bring in, you know, they take off the shell—

Tran: Uh-huh.

VanZandt: Yes. Right. And where is that in Vietnam? Is it in your same home
town where you lived?

Tran: Yeah, same home town.

VanZandt: My goodness.

Tran: (chuckle)

VanZandt: Are there other rice plants there? Or is that the only one?
Nguyen: (speaking Vietnamese)

Tran: (speaking Vietnamese)

Nguyen: Yeah. There’s a couple down there also, but not enough competition
because he bought his for her about fifteen years ago.

VanZandt: How is it doing? Doing well?
Tran: Yeah, good.

VanZandt: Does your daughter work there, too?
Tran: Uh-huh.
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VanZandt: Oh, that’s fantastic. Well, I guess—and I want to ask you at the end if
there’s anything else I haven’t asked.

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: Anything that you would like to share. But just to finish a little bit more
about the oil spill—how do you feel that the government, that BP, that the Gulf Coast
Claims Facility [GCCF] has handled this oil spill over the past year? And what do
you think could have been done better, differently?

Nguyen: Chu nghi gi vé& nhitng viéc 1am caa chinh phu hiéu qua ra sao?
(How do you feel the government has handled this oil spill over the past year?)
(some Vietnamese spoken here not transcribed in above passage.)

Nguyen: Claims facility?

VanZandt: Gulf Coast Claims Facility.

Tran: Gulf Coast.

Nguyen: GCF.

VanZandt: Ken Feinberg.

Nguyen: GCF. (speaking Vietnamese)

Tran: Khong dugc, khéng xong.

(No, it’s not good.)

(some Vietnamese spoken here not transcribed or translated in above passage.)

Nguyen: Yeah. So all the deckhands and all the fishermen, it doesn’t matter. They
can’t really file a claim based on their income or what they were going to own(?).
They have a final compensation of $25,000. And that’s final. They can’t appeal that.
And he said that’s just not right.

VanZandt: And there’s been pressure, | understand, to file a final [claim] and be
done—

Nguyen: Right.
Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: —instead of taking the interim payments or waiting. And so it sounds
like it’s been really, particularly hard for the deckhands. Why is it that you can’t file a
claim, or don’t want to? Does it have to do with documentation that you may not
have, or—
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Nguyen: Tai sao né kho dé ma claims? C6 phai la vi gidy to?
(Does it have to do with documentations?)

Tran: Khdng phii, tai vi thang harbor né muon ép dan minh dé né huong. N6 khang
lam kho giay to.

(Not because of the documentations. They have it all. | just want to have the final
claims.)

Nguyen: He thinks it’s, whoever is in charge of the claims, he just wants it to get it
done. It’s not because of documentation. They have it all. He just wants to have it
final claimed, and then the guy who watches(?) his claims, hands in and keeps, you
know, whatever is left for himself and—

VanZandt: Have you filed a claim, any kind of claim over the past year?

Tran: Co lam het roi, lam xong roi. 3 tuan truoc no gui ve no keu ra ky lanh 25 ngan.
Sap tu van phong tra cho hang lai roi. (laughs)

Nguyen: Yeah, he’s done all the paperwork, and about three weeks ago he received a
letter that says go out and sign for that $25,000, that final claim.

VanZandt: So will you do that, or will you wait?
Tran: | wait, wait. (laughs)

VanZandt: Good for you. Well, I know that it’s difficult, because | understand to
receive the final payment, once you do, that you don’t have any recourse later to sue at
all. And that it’s based on a prediction. Is that right? Of what your income might be
later on? Which is impossible to predict. So it sounds like you think there needs to be
some changes. How do you think it would be better? What could they do?

Tran: Néu ca lang nay khdng chiu ki, minh kéo dai thoi gian 2013.

(That this whole area, the fishermen are refusing to sign that, so that they can have a
deadline of 2013. So they can wear them down.)

Nguyen: So he says that this whole area, all the deckhands and fishermen are refusing
to sign for that so that they can drag it out. Because didn’t they have a deadline of like
2013 for it? So they’re just dragging it out to whittle them down.

Tran: (laughs)

VanZandt: Wear them down. OK. Well, it sounds like you-all have come
together—

Tran: Yeah, yeah.
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VanZandt: —and are helping each other, supporting each other, and committed.
That’s good. What kind of help have you received from Mary Queen of Vietnam
CDC here? How have they helped you?

Nguyen: (speaking Vietnamese)

Tran: Tét, can gi thi t6i lai hoi.

(Very good. 1 could ask everything.)

(some Vietnamese spoken not transcribed or translated in above passage.)

Nguyen: Yeah. He says that this office has done good work for him. Anytime he has
a question, he comes out here, and he talks to one of the counselors, and it helps him
to have confidence.

VanZandt: Well, Mr. Tran, I’ve taken a lot of your time. (chuckles)
Tran: (chuckles) Yeah.

VanZandt: But you have a lot to tell about your life. You’ve had a very interesting
life. And | thank you for sharing. Is there anything that you think about that you’d
like for your daughter to know, for maybe her children, your grandchildren—

Tran: (chuckles)

VanZandt: A hundred years from now, when you’re gone—and you think about your
life—any advice for them, or anything else that you’d like to share.

Tran: (chuckles) N6 c6 sdng chung véi minh dau ma noi.
(They don’t live with me, so.)

Nguyen: Con gi chd mudn néi ra nita khdng.

(Is there anything else?)

Tran: Théi, da rdi. (laughs)

(No, it’s enough.)

Nguyen: He’s like, “I don’t know.”

VanZandt: (laughs) OK. Well, thank you very much, then, Mr. Tran. I wish you all
the best.

Tran: You’re welcome.

(end of interview)
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